Public Document Pack

Licensing (General) Sub-Committee

Wednesday, 1st June, 2011
at 9.30 am
PLEASE NOTE TIME OF MEETING

Committee Rooms 1 and 2 - Civic Centre

This meeting is open to the public
Members

Councillor Drake
Councillor Parnell
Councillor Willacy
Councillor Mrs Blatchford
Councillor Thomas

Contacts

Democratic Support Officer

Sharon Pearson

Tel: 023 8083 4597

Email: sharon.pearson@southampton.gov.uk

Acting Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Richard lvory

Tel. 023 8083 2794

Email: Richard.ivory@southampton.gov.uk




PUBLIC INFORMATION

Terms of Reference

The Sub-Committee deals with licenses,
permits and forms of consent (other
than those for which the Council is
responsible under the Licensing Act
2003), including

e Hackney carriage and private
hire drivers, vehicles and
operators
Public music and dancing
Amusements with prizes
Street trading
Sex establishments

Relevant Representations

Those who have made relevant
representations may address the
meeting about the matter in which they
have an interest with the consent of the
Chair.

eSouthampton City Council’s Six
Priorities

eProviding good value, high quality
services

¢Getting the City working
eInvesting in education and training
eKeeping people safe

eKeeping the City clean and green
eLooking after people

Smoking policy —

The Council operates a no-smoking policy
in all civic buildings.

Mobile Telephones — please turn off your
mobile telephone whilst in the meeting.

Fire Procedure — in the event of a fire or
other emergency a continuous alarm will

sound and you will be advised by Council
officers what action to take.

Access — access is available for disabled
people. Please contact the Democratic
Support Officer who will help to make any
necessary arrangements.

Dates of Meetings: Municipal Year
2010/11

2011 2012
1 JUNE 11 JANUARY
27 JULY 8 FEBRUARY
24 AUGUST 7 MARCH
28 SEPTEMBER | 4 APRIL
26 OCTOBER 2 MAY
24 NOVEMBER
14 DECEMBER




CONDUCT OF MEETING

Terms of Reference Business to be discussed

The terms of reference of the Audit Only those items listed on the attached
Committee are contained in Article 8 agenda may be considered at this

and Part 3 (Schedule 2) of the Council’'s meeting.

Constitution.

Rules of Procedure Quorum

The meeting is governed by the Council The minimum number of appointed
Procedure Rules as set out in Part 4 of  Members required to be in attendance to
the Constitution. hold the meeting is 3.

Disclosure of Interests

Members are required to disclose, in accordance with the Members’ Code of
Conduct, both the existence and nature of any “personal” or “prejudicial” interests
they may have in relation to matters for consideration on this Agenda.

Personal Interests
A Member must regard himself or herself as having a personal interest in any matter

(i) if the matter relates to an interest in the Member’s register of interests; or
(i) if a decision upon a matter might reasonably be regarded as affecting to a
greater extent than other Council Tax payers, ratepayers and inhabitants of
the District, the wellbeing or financial position of himself or herself, a relative
or a friend or:-
(a) any employment or business carried on by such person,;
(b) any person who employs or has appointed such a person, any firm in
which such a person is a partner, or any company of which such a
person is a director;
(c) any corporate body in which such a person has a beneficial interest in a
class of securities exceeding the nominal value of £5,000; or

(d) any body listed in Article 14(a) to (e) in which such a person holds a
position of general control or management.

A Member must disclose a personal interest.

Continued/......



Prejudicial Interests

Having identified a personal interest, a Member must consider whether a member of the
public with knowledge of the relevant facts would reasonably think that the interest was so
significant and particular that it could prejudice that Member’s judgement of the public
interest. If that is the case, the interest must be regarded as “prejudicial” and the Member
must disclose the interest and withdraw from the meeting room during discussion on the
item.

It should be noted that a prejudicial interest may apply to part or the whole of an item.

Where there are a series of inter-related financial or resource matters, with a limited
resource available, under consideration a prejudicial interest in one matter relating to that
resource may lead to a member being excluded from considering the other matters relating
to that same limited resource.

There are some limited exceptions.

Note: Members are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or his staff in
Democratic Services if they have any problems or concerns in relation to the above.

Principles of Decision Making
All decisions of the Council will be made in accordance with the following principles:-

proportionality (i.e. the action must be proportionate to the desired outcome);
due consultation and the taking of professional advice from officers;

respect for human rights;

a presumption in favour of openness, accountability and transparency;
setting out what options have been considered;

setting out reasons for the decision; and

clarity of aims and desired outcomes.

In exercising discretion, the decision maker must:

e understand the law that regulates the decision making power and gives effect to it. The
decision-maker must direct itself properly in law;

e take into account all relevant matters (those matters which the law requires the authority
as a matter of legal obligation to take into account);

e leave out of account irrelevant considerations;

e act for a proper purpose, exercising its powers for the public good;

e not reach a decision which no authority acting reasonably could reach, (also known as
the “rationality” or “taking leave of your senses” principle);

e comply with the rule that local government finance is to be conducted on an annual basis.
Save to the extent authorised by Parliament, ‘live now, pay later’ and forward funding are
unlawful; and

e act with procedural propriety in accordance with the rules of fairness.



Agendas and papers are available on the Council’s website at
www.southampton.gov.uk

1 ELECTION OF CHAIR

To elect a Chair to the Sub-Committee for the 2011/12 Municipal Year.

2 APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

To note any changes in the membership of the Sub-Committee made in accordance
with Council Procedure Rule 4.3.

3 DISCLOSURE OF PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

In accordance with the Local Government Act 2000, and the Council's Code of
Conduct adopted on 16th May 2007, Members to disclose any personal or prejudicial
interests in any matter included on the agenda for this meeting.

NOTE: Members are reminded that, where applicable, they must complete the
appropriate form recording details of any such interests and hand it to the Cabinet
Administrator prior to the commencement of this meeting.

4 STATEMENT FROM THE CHAIR

5 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

To approve and sign as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 27"
October 2010 and to deal with any matters arising, attached.

6 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

At a predetermined point during the consideration of all items the Sub-Committee may
move into private session in order to receive legal advice when determining issues.
The press and the public, unless otherwise excluded by Category 4 of paragraph 10.4
of the Council's Access to Information Procedure Rules, will be invited to return
immediately following that private session at which time the matter will be determined
and the decision of the Sub-Committee will be announced.



7  APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF A SEX SHOP LICENCE - TASTE OF
AMSTERDAM, 437 MILLBROOK ROAD WEST (Pages 1 - 34)

Report of the Solicitor to the Council detailing an application for the renewal of a Sex
Shop Licence in respect of Taste of Amsterdam, 437 Millbrook Road West, attached.

8 APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF A SEX SHOP LICENCE WITH 2 VARIATIONS -
HIDDEN ASSETS, 439 MILLBROOK ROAD WEST (Pages 35 - 70)

Report of the Solicitor to the Council detailing an application for the renewal of a Sex
Shop Licence with two variations in respect of Hidden Assets, 439 Millbrook Road
West, attached.

Monday, 23 May 2011 SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL



Agenda ltem 5

LICENSING (GENERAL) SUB-COMMITTEE
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 27 OCTOBER 2010

Present: Councillors Parnell (Chair), Willacy (Vice-Chair), Drake, Harris, McEwing,

Osmond and Thomas

Apologies: Councillor Norris

17.

18.

19.

20.

APOLOGIES AND CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP (IF ANY)

The Panel noted that Councillor Harris was in attendance as a nominated substitute for
Councillor Norris in accordance with Council procedure Rule 4.3.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (INCLUDING MATTERS ARISING)

RESOLVED that the Minutes of the meeting held on 1% September 2010 be
signed as a correct record. (Copy of the minutes circulated with the agenda
and appended to the signed minutes).

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

RESOLVED that the press and public, unless otherwise excluded by Category
4 of paragraph 10.4 of the Council’'s Access to Information Procedure Rules,
be excluded from the meeting in respect of Minute No 20 and be invited to
return immediately following private session at which time the matter be
determined and the decision of the Panel be announced.

APPLICATION FOR A SEX SHOP LICENCE - THE ADULT SHOP, 90 HOWARD
ROAD

The Sub-Committee considered the confidential report of the Solicitor to the Council
regarding an application for a sex shop licence in respect of the Adult Gift Shop, 90
Howard Road, attached. (Copy of report circulated with agenda and appended to
signed minutes).

Mr Hale (Applicant) and Mr Grey (Counsel for the Applicant) were present and with the
consent of the Chair addressed the meeting.

The Sub-Committee considered the report in confidential session in accordance with
Category 4 of Paragraph 10.4 of the Council’s Access to Information Procedure Rules

RESOLVED that the application for a sex shop licence in respect of the Adult
Gift Shop, 90 Howard Road, be granted subject to the Council’s standard
conditions for sex establishments and the following special conditions:-

-7-



(i) Conditions 1 to 4 as set out in the report; and

(i) an amendment of the standard conditions regarding opening hours
be permitted to ensure trading hours be the same as the other sex
shops currently licensed by the City Council — 09.00 to 22.00
Monday to Saturday with no trading permitted on public holidays.

REASON FOR THE DECISION

There was no compelling evidence presented to the Sub-Committee that would justify
refusal of the application for renewal of the licence.

The Sub-Committee stressed that any breach of conditions would be viewed very
seriously in the future, particularly that condition relating to persons not properly
authorised being involved with the business.



Agenda ltem 7

ITEM NO:
DECISION-MAKER: LICENSING (GENERAL) SUB-COMMITTEE
SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF A SEX SHOP

LICENCE — A TASTE OF AMSTERDAM, 437
MILLBROOK ROAD WEST

DATE OF DECISION: 15T JUNE 2011
REPORT OF: SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL
AUTHOR: Name:  JOHN WHITE Tel: | 02380832749

E-mail:  john.white@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
Not applicable.

SUMMARY

The Sub-Committee is requested to determine the application for renewal of a sex
shop licence from Mr. Martin Peter Castle in respect of A Taste of Amsterdam, 437
Millbrook Road West, Southampton, SO15 OHX.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) For the Sub-Committee to consider and determine the application for
the renewal of the sex shop licence in respect of A Taste of
Amsterdam, 437 Millbrook Road West, Southampton, SO15 OHX.

REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS

1. Under the Council’s current scheme of delegation, the determination of
applications for the renewal of sex shop licences is a matter for the Sub-
Committee and is not delegated to officers.

CONSULTATION

2. Applicants for the renewal of a sex shop licence are required to display a
notice on the premises to be licensed for 21 days and advertise in a local
newspaper circulating in Southampton.

3. Applicants for the renewal of a sex shop licence are required to supply a copy
of the application to the Chief Constable of Hampshire Constabulary.

4. Any person objecting to an application for the renewal of a sex shop licence
shall give notice of in writing to the local authority, not later than 28 days after
the date of the application.

5. No objections have been received from residential, business and institutional
addresses within the period of notice.

6. Hampshire Constabulary have confirmed that they have no objection to the
application.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED



ITEM NO:

7. None.

DETAIL
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

8. Southampton City Council first adopted the provisions of Part |l of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 16th March
1983.

9. In April 1984, the Council determined the relevant localities in respect of the

premises then under consideration.

10. The plans of the two areas showing the relevant localities are held by the
Licensing Team at Southbrook Rise, with the first area being Kingsland
Place/St. Mary Street and the second area being East Street.

11. Following High Court challenges to other local authorities’ adoption of the
legislation, the City Council was advised by Counsel in 1995 that it would be
appropriate to readopt the provisions. The Council resolved the adoption of
schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 on
10 April 1995, with the provisions coming into effect from 3 July 1995. Notices
setting out the effect of the provisions were published in the Southern Daily
Echo on 5 and 12 May 1995.

12. No further applications were made for sex shop or sex cinema licences until
2002, when an application was received for premises at 131 Above Bar. The
Licensing and Public Safety Panel agreed to the grant of a licence in respect
of those premises, subject to conditions, in February 2003.

13. The Licensing and Public Safety Panel subsequently considered two separate
applications in respect of premises at 437 Millbrook Road West and 439
Millborook Road West in July 2003 and resolved to grant both licences subject
to conditions.

14. At present there are a total of four licensed sex shops currently operating
within Southampton, including A Taste of Amsterdam at 437 Millbrook Road
West. The other three premises are located at 439 Millbrook Road West, 16
Hanover Buildings and 90 Howard Road.

THE APPLICATION AND RELEVANT LOCALITY

15. An application (attached as appendix 2) has been received for a renewal of a
sex establishment licence in respect of the premises at 437 Millbrook Road
West.

16. The Council has not previously considered the issue of determining an

appropriate number of sex establishments within a “relevant location” which
would include these premises.

17. However two such areas (which do not include these premises) have
previously been decided by the Council and the background information
relating to this is set out above.

APPLICATION DETAILS



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

The application is for the renewal of the sex shop licence in respect of 437
Millbrook Road West. The applicant is Mr. Martin Peter Castle, of whom
further details are given in the renewal application that is attached to this
report as Appendix 2.

The applicant has held the licence in respect of 437 Millbrook Road West
since the original grant of it in July 2003, with the licence being renewed
annually upon anniversary of grant.

No changes to the current licence conditions are requested in this renewal
application.

Notice of the application was placed in the Southern Daily Echo on 26"
February 2011.

On 11" March 2011 a Licensing Officer witnessed that the notice of the
application was exhibited on the front window of 439 Millborook Road West.
The applicant has confirmed via affidavit that notice of this application was
exhibited on the front window of 437 Millborook Road West for 21 days.

The Licensing Officer can confirm that a number of inspections of the
premises have taken place throughout the past year to ensure that the
licence conditions are being adhered to. No breaches of licence conditions or
concerns about the manner in which this shop has operated have been
identified within the last year.

The applicant has been invited to attend the Sub-Committee’s meeting.
PROPOSED TRADING ACTIVITIES

The renewal of the licence is sought under the same terms and conditions as
are currently in place in respect of the premises. No request to vary the
current licence conditions has been made.

At present, the premises are permitted to trade on Mondays to Saturdays
between 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m. on each of those days and sell by retail;
goods including lingerie and other clothing items, videos, DVDs, magazines
and other marital aids.

British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) Restricted 18 (R18) classified
video recordings are also sold at the premises (such video recordings may
contain pornographic images). The Video Recordings Act 2010 makes it an
offence to supply an R18 classified video recording except in a licensed sex
shop and also makes it an offence to supply an unclassified video recording.

It is understood that should the renewal application be granted then the
applicant will continue with such trading activities.

Members should note that a sex establishment licence does not permit the
sale of any goods that are prohibited in law, in particular by the Obscene
Publications Act 1964.

If the Sub-Committee grant the application for renewal of the licence, it may
be on such terms and conditions and subject to such restrictions as the Sub-
Committee may specify.

A copy of the current licence issued in respect of 437 Millborook Road West is
attached as Appendix 3.



32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

THE LEGISLATION — DEFINITIONS

Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
sets out the framework for the consideration of applications for sex shop
licences.

The legislation requires that no person shall, in any area in which the sex
establishment licensing provisions have been adopted, use any premises,
vehicle, vessel or stall as a sex establishment except under and in
accordance with the terms of a licence granted by the appropriate authority.

A “sex establishment” is either a sex shop or a sex cinema. This report
concerns an application for a licence to use premises as a sex shop.

A “sex shop” is defined by the legislation as follows: "any premises, vehicle,
vessel or stall used for a business which consists to a significant degree of
selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or demonstrating sex articles
or other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of
stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which
are associated with sexual activity".

A “sex article” is defined as: “anything made for use in connection with, or for
the purpose of stimulating or encouraging—

a) sexual activity; or
b) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; and

c) to any article containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at or
anything intended to be used, either alone or as one of a set, for the
reproduction or manufacture of any such article; and

d) to any recording vision or sound, which is concerned primarily with the
portrayal of, or primarily deals with or relates to, or is intended to stimulate or
encourage, sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated
with sexual activity; or is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or
primarily deals with or relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory
functions.”

THE LEGISLATION - NOTICES AND OBJECTORS

Applicants are required to display a public notice at the premises for 21 days
and, in addition, publish in a local newspaper a notice inviting written
objections.

The names and addresses of objectors must be kept confidential unless the
objectors indicate otherwise.

The Act does not provide objectors with a right to be heard in person by the
Sub-Committee. Those persons from whom valid objections have been
received have been advised of the date and time of the meeting and have
also been advised that they may only address the meeting at the invitation of
the Sub-Committee.

If granted, sex shop licences are in force for one year or for such shorter
periods specified in the licence as the Sub-Committee may think fit.

Under the Council’s current scheme of delegation, the renewal of any such
licence would be a matter for the Sub-Committee.



42.

43.
44.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

THE LEGISLATION - APPLICATION PROCEDURE

Paragraph 10 of Schedule 3 to the Act requires an application to be made in
writing to the appropriate authority and to state the full name of the applicant,
his permanent address and his age. In the case of an application made by a
body corporate or an unincorporated body, the full name of the body, the
address of its registered or principal office and the full names and private
address of the directors or other persons responsible for its management are
required to be provided.

In addition, the full address of the premises must be given.

The applicant is required to send a copy of the application to the Chief
Officer of Police within seven days of the date of the application and any
objections to the application must be made in writing to the City Council not
later than 28 days after the date of the application.

The City Council is required, before considering the application, to give
notice in writing of the general terms of any objection to the applicant. The
Licensing Officer has forwarded transcripts of each objection (without
identifying the objector, unless consent has been given) to the applicants.

The Act requires that, in considering any application for the grant of a
licence, the Sub-Committee shall have regard to any observations submitted
to them by the Chief of Police, and any objections of which notice has been
sent to them within the 28-day period referred to above.

The City Council is required to give an applicant an opportunity of appearing
before and being heard by the Sub-Committee before the application is
determined.

A note of the procedure that the Sub-Committee has adopted for
consideration of applications of this kind is attached as Appendix 1.

THE LEGISLATION - OBJECTIONS

The legislation requires the Sub-Committee, in considering an application, to
have regard to any observations made by the Chief of Police and to any
objections of which proper notice has been given.

The Sub-Committee has the discretion, subject to the restrictions mentioned
below, to invite objectors, who have given written notice of their objections,
to address the Sub-Committee.

At the hearing itself the Sub-Committee has a discretion to allow objections
to be heard subject to:

a) only those objectors whose written objections have been received before
the end of the 28 day period may be heard (subject to (e) below);

b) those objections confined to putting forward only points which are relevant
to consideration of the grounds of refusal and which were contained in
written objections referred to in (a) above;

c) if the objectors are heard this should precede the hearing afforded to the
applicant and the applicant should be given the opportunity of hearing and
noting what the objectors say.

d) The objectors and the applicant may not ask questions of each other.



53.

54.

55.

56.

o7.

58.

59.

60.

61.

e) The Sub-Committee may, at their discretion, consider objections or
representations made out of time. Such discretion can only be exercised if
the applicant has been afforded reasonable time to consider the content prior
to the hearing.

Members are encouraged to approach this application in three steps:

a) Identify an area of reasonably consistent character within which the
premises falls, and consider this application on its own merits.

b) Consider whether the grant of a licence to the applicant for this use of the
premises would be inappropriate given the character of that area.

c) Consider the location of other licensed sex shops given the area’s nature
and environs and the resultant effect.

THE LEGISLATION - LICENCE CONDITIONS

The City Council has a power under the Act to make regulations prescribing
standard conditions on or subject to which sex shop licences are, in general,
to be granted. The City Council has made such regulations.

These may include the hours of opening and closing of sex establishments,
displays or advertisements on or in such establishments, the visibility of the
interior of sex establishments to passers-by and any change of a sex cinema
to a sex shop or vice versa. All such conditions are presumed to apply to
every licence granted unless they have been expressly excluded or varied.

A copy of the standard conditions made by the City Council appears at
Appendix 4 to this report.

In addition, the Indecent Displays (Control) Act 1981 prohibits the public
display of any indecent matter unless access is only on payment or the
display is in a shop that can only be accessed by passing beyond a warning
notice. No person under the age of 18 may be permitted to enter.

The warning notice must contain the following words: “WARNING - persons
passing beyond this notice will find material on display which they may
consider to be indecent. No admittance to persons under 18 years of age”.

THE LEGISLATION - CRITERIA

Written reasons must be given to the applicant within seven days of the
applicant requesting the information from the City Council.

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 to the Act sets out both mandatory and
discretionary grounds for the refusal of an application for a licence.
A licence shall not be granted:

a) to a person under the age of 18; or

b) to a person who has had such a licence revoked, within 12 months of that
revocation; or

c) to a person other than a body corporate who is not resident in the United
Kingdom or was not so resident throughout the period of 6 months
immediately preceding the date when the application was made; or

d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in the United Kingdom; or

e) to a person who has, within the period of 12 months immediately
preceding the date when the application was made, been refused the grant



62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

68.

69.

or renewal of a licence for the premises in respect of which the application is
made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

The Sub-Committee may refuse an application for the grant of a licence on
one or more of the following grounds:

a) that the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having
been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

b) that if the licence were to be granted, the business to which it relates
would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the
applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a
licence if he made the application himself;

c) that the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time
the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the
authority consider is appropriate for that locality;

d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having
regard,;

i) to the character of the relevant locality; or

ii) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises in respect of which
the application is made.

The Act provides that nil may be an appropriate number of premises in “the
relevant locality.”

The “relevant locality” is defined by the Act as meaning, in relation to the
premises, the locality in which it is situated.

Although the Council has, in the past, determined appropriate numbers of
sex shops for specific localities, it is considered advisable to merely deal with
this application on its merits and not to embark on an additional exercise of
determining a precise “relevant locality” and an appropriate number of
establishments in it. Such an exercise is only recommended if after having
regard to the area generally (and in accordance with paragraph 53 of this
Report) it is felt that the number and / or proximity of premises may be
inappropriate.

In assessing the application, Members should consider any objections in
light of the statutory grounds of refusal. In doing so Members may call on
their own moral sense in reaching a view as to what is appropriate in any
particular location.

Members, in determining the application, should consider each of these
issues and determine whether grant or refusal is appropriate and, if so, why.

However, it would not be lawful to refuse the application merely because
Members consider sex shops are immoral or should not be permitted.
Further, there are discretionary grounds of refusal. Members have a residual
discretion to grant an application despite it falling within one of these
grounds, but Members should only do so in these circumstances for good
reasons, which would need to be specified.

THE LEGISLATION - APPEALS



70. An applicant for the grant of a sex shop licence, whose application has been
refused, may appeal within twenty-one days of the giving of written notice of
the grounds of the refusal, to the Magistrates' Court.

71. However, there is no right of appeal if the refusal is on one of the mandatory

grounds:

a) applicant under 18

b) applicant disqualified

c) applicant not resident in the United Kingdom

d) body not incorporated in the United Kingdom

e) licence refused for the premises within 12 months

unless the applicant seeks to show that the ground did not apply to him.

72. In addition there is no right of appeal against a decision by the Sub-
Committee that the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at
the time the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the
authority consider appropriate for that locality or that the grant of a licence
would be inappropriate having regard to the character of the relevant locality,

or to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or to the layout,
character or condition of the premises in respect of which the application is

made.

73. Appeal against the decision of a Magistrates’ Court may be made to the
Crown Court.

74. Similarly, if a licence is granted, a right of appeal exists against any term,

condition or restriction on or subject to which the licence is held.

FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital

75. There are no financial implications.

Revenue

76. Not applicable.

Property

77. Not applicable.

Other

78. The work involved for the licensing team in bringing this renewal to the

committee is contained within existing budgets.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:




79.

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
sets out the City Councils power to renew a sex shop licence.

Other Legal Implications:

80.

81.

THE LEGISLATION - CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a
duty to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area.

THE LEGISLATION - HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with
the European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the Council to
act in a way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with
the rights protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the Council that
could have an effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken
having regard to the principle of proportionality - the need to balance the
rights of the individual with the rights of the community as a whole. Any action
taken by the Council which affects another's rights must be no more onerous
than is necessary in a democratic society. The matter set out in this report
must be considered in light of the above obligations.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

82.

The decision to determine the application in the manner set out in this report
is not contrary to the council’s policy framework.



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1.

Procedure for hearing a sex shop renewal application

2. Application for renewal of a sex shop licence for A Taste of Amsterdam, 437
Millbrook Road West, Southampton

3. Current licence for A Taste of Amsterdam, 437 Millbrook Road West,
Southampton

4. Sex shop standard conditions

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1.

None

Background Documents

Title of Background Paper(s)

Relevant Paragraph of the
Access to Information
Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if
applicable)

1.

Application for a sex shop licence

2.

Response from Police

Background documents available for inspection at: Licensing Office, Southbrook

FORWARD PLAN No:
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED:

Rise

KEY DECISION?

10




APPENDIX 1
Special Procedure for the Licensing (General) Sub-Committee — Applications for
Sex Establishment licences
One of the Council's Corporate Legal Advisors will be in attendance throughout the
proceedings and he/she is there to advise Members. Sub-Committee Members may seek
clarification on points of procedure at any time.

Please note that the Sub-Committee will normally adjourn for lunch at 1:00 p.m.
and that comfort breaks will be taken at the discretion of the Chair at appropriate
points during the meeting.

1. INTRODUCTION

L4 Everyone to introduce themselves
¢  The Licensing Officer will introduce the report, including background information
and any written objections received.
¢ Members' questions to the Licensing Officer
2. OBJECTORS

If Objectors (including Police) have attended indicating a wish to address the Sub-
Committee the Sub-Committee will consider each request in light of its discretion
to permit oral representations.

As a guide, such representations will only be permitted if appropriate in order to
briefly summarise and expand upon the main points of objection as set out in
written submissions. Mere recitation of previous written submissions will not be
permitted, nor will the introduction of entirely new grounds of objection.

Questions of Objectors will not be permitted by any party (including Members).
3. APPLICATION
The applicant or their representative will outline the details of the application and
call any witnesses in support.
Questions may be asked of the applicant or of any witnesses by:
Licensing Officer
Members of the Sub-Committee

The applicant may call supporting witnesses at their discretion during the
presentation of their application. Questions may be asked by the Sub-Committee
Members / Licensing Officer of such witnesses at any appropriate point in their
presentation

If any written objections have been received the applicant or their representative
will be invited to comment on them

4. SUMMING UP
The applicant or their representative will have a final opportunity to sum up their
application.

5. CONSIDERATION OF DECISION - CONFIDENTIAL SESSION

Members of the Sub-Committee will retire to consider the decision. In doing so the
Solicitor to the Sub-Committee and the Sub-Committee Administrator will retire
with them, but will take no part in the discussion of the merits of the case or what
the decision should be



Should the Solicitor to the Sub-Committee be required to clarify any points of law,
these will be repeated in the public session.

6. ANNOUNCEMENT OF DECISION

Sub-Committee Members will return and the Chair of the Sub-Committee will
deliver the decision in public session. The Licensing Officer will confirm this
decision in writing to the Applicant within 7 days of the Sub-Committee decision,
together with details of any relevant right of appeal.

Note:  Thjs procedure note is issued as a guide only — the order and conduct of business
may be varied by the person presiding at any time in order to facilitate the
determination of the matter, having regard to statutory restrictions and the rules of
natural justice.



Appendix 2

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOQOUS PROVISIONS) ACT
1982, SECTION 2

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT*/RENEWAL*/TRANSFER* OF A SOUTHAMPTON
LICENCE TO USE ANY PREMISES, VEHICLE, VESSEL OR STALL Oy :

AS A SEX ESTABLISHMENT CITY_ COUNCIL
1. Is the application being made:
(a) by an individual; or
2. Give the full names of the applicant (i.e. the individual, partnership, body

corporate or unincorporated body making application). If the applicant is an
individual any former names must also be given.

MALTID DeTet cASTLE

3. Give the applicant's permanent home address (if an individual) or registered or
principal office (if a partnership, body corporate, or unincorporated body) and a
telephone number at which the applicant may be contacted during normal office
hours.

23 CunAD AYERNEC  SouswamPom Soiy §ea

4, Is the application in respect of a sex shop or a sex cinema?
SE X SHof
5. Is the application in respect of
(%a;—g premises; or
(d——arstali?—
6. Where the Licence is sought in respect of a vehicle, vessel or stall state where it

is to be used as a sex establishment.

7. Where the Licence is sought in respect of premises give the full address of the
premises, including the postcode.

G3% MicLZoor, oA WEST SormRAMPR Sy OHYX

8. Are the whole of the premises described in response to Question 7 above to be
used as a sex establishment?

Yes

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 1 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



If the answer to Question 8 above is "No" please state
(a) which parts of the premises are to be used for the purposes of a sex
establishment;

(b) the uses to which the remainder of the premises are to be put;

(c) the names, addresses and dates of birth of those who are responsible
for the management of the remainder of the premises.

10. Are the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in use as a sex establishment at the
date of this application?
qEes
11. Were the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in use as a sex establishment on
22nd December 19817
rNO
12. Under what names are or will the premises be known?
A TASTE OF AMSTEADAM
13. If the applicant is an individual give the following information:
(a) Date of birth; \c'l““'\ Mored \HEF
(b) Place of birth;  Sovian g bon
(€) Nationality. gp-_\ \S ain

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 2 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



11UN0Y AID UOIWERYINOS L00Z-¢861 & €140 g abey IBJSUBL| [EMBUBHILBIS) - W04 - | S3XTS

uHg (Aue 1)
AjijeuopeN Jo aseld yuig jo areq Aoedes SSaIppy SWoH auwleu Jewuo 4 aweuing aweualo

"uaaIb aq s sisuped T
U} Jo} sjqisuodsal suosiad Jayjo 1o Lliejaioag Auedwoy sy

diyssouped e s Jueondde ay § 4




JajsURI [ [BMAUBHIUEID - WO - 1STXIS

pounos) Ayo uoidweynos L00Z-€861 © g1 Jo v abed
r
vDs  Se
25 S LAY ISV
UMW S OV QNN £ T A W ol yr2¢ YW
PAVDVVIY
‘uonesijdde ‘paousWWod
siy} Jo ajep ay} Buipadsaud Ajeje1pawiul syjuow aouapisal YN uaym sjep aab
| xis 3noybnouy} asuapisal juauewlad 1o ssalppy N UM JoU S Yuiq 3o aoejd y ypig jo a1ed soweN
{joes 10 Yadsal Ut mo|aq 8|qe} a4} a1 dwo) Gl

"3AOQE p| pUE ¢ suonsanb o} 55Uodsal Ul USAID B18 SSLUBU 9SOUM S|eNnpIapul SU} JO



16.  This question need only be answered where the applicant is a Company.
(a) Is the applicant a wholly or partly owned subsidiary of another Company?

(b} What type of Company is the applicant (e.g. public or private limited by share or
guarantee efc.?)

(c) In which Country is the Company incorporated?
(d) What is the date of incorporation of the Company?
(e) Supply a certified copy of the applicant Company's Memorandum and Articles.

(f) If the applicant is a subsidiary of another Company give the following details and
information:-

(i) A list of all other companies controlled by the holding company together
with full details of any ultimate holding company.

(i) A certified copy of the Memorandum and Articles of the parent company

(i) The names and addresses of the Directors and Company Secretary of the
parent company (use a separate sheet if necessary).

w3 A

SEXEST -Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 5 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



JOjSUBI | {EMAUSHIVRID - Wi - 1SIXIS

Jloune Ang uoidweyinos L00Z-€861 © g1 jo o abed
‘AR
sbuip|oH [ waig jo aeq | ssalppy | aweN

‘s19pjoyaleys Builiews) Jo Jagquinu 8y} pue |endeo aleys

panssi ayj Jo alow JO %0l Buipjoy s1apjoysieys jo sBuipjoy pue sassalppe ‘salueu Jo ISl N} & anlb Auedwoo e S| weondde y L



18.  Has the applicant a financial interest in the business which is the subject of this
application? If 'yes' to what extent?
1€s - Propaucted
19. s the whole of the business owned by the applicant? V{ <
&

20.  If the whole of the business is not owned by the applicant state the names and
addresses of those who will share in the profits of the business. In each case
state the percentage share to be taken by each individual. oA

21.  Is the applicant concerned in any other way financially or otherwise with any
other business? A .

AES — As dén dermes i FRENOS AR CA T oS

22, Ifthe answer to Question 21 is 'yes' give full details of the other business and the
nature and extent of the connection. .

DETALS ALowdEDd PR ossiA

23. s the business required to purchase merchandise from a particular company,
person or body? If 'yes' supply a copy of any agreement and state what is to be
purchased and from whom.

oL

24, Supply scale plans of the premises clearly showing the interiar layout and the use
of each part (see note C).

Phovipesnd PRENEALY . NG CHANGE

25.  What means are to be taken o prevent the interior of the premises being visible
to persons outside the premises?

26 CXNANAT 53 & DAGAAMS AS fen HLE o

Give details of the times during which it is proposed to open the premises:- AL ic Aiten

(a) Days of the week

(b) Hours of the day ks T ¢ CALEMNTLY 1S

NO HMNGES Ae CpocertT -

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 7 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



jIpunog A0 uoidwewynos L00Z-€86 1L @ gl jo g abed JojSUEl | [BMAUSYIVEID) - Lo - 153x3as

,_JJM.QA“:? Ay e a2l ST ) DT

oIl SCRINATY FIVIS s 2>70vH) ol

(Mn episyno
yiq o @9ejd 1) MN
ay} ui Juopisal ewedaq yuig g ssaIppy
fyjeuoneN yo1ym uodn ajeq Jo aoe|d jo ayeq 9WOH juauewlad aweuINg | dWEeUsO

-:sjieyep Bumoj|o} a8y} Aiddns eses|d
euws oy} 10} djgisuodsal 8q 0} SI oYM [enpiAlpul YoeD Jo adsal u| ‘12

19p|oY SOUSDI| B} Jo doussqe A} ui sesiwald au} Jo juawabeu



l2unod Ang uoydweyinog L002-£861 O €1 Jo g abey JRJSUBL| [BMBUSHIUEIS) - WO - 153%38

ST SN NAR 2wyl Duop

W seowazst  anppg (e

Hom jo aimeu jo uondissaqg |

SSaIppPyY pue aweN siafojdwg [ (Rue iy ewen Jaulod | oweuing ]

dWeusalo]

Juswifojdws jo SS)Ep pue sinjeu ay) pue siafojdwe
IIE JO sessalppe pue saweu S epnjoul isnw ssay ‘uoljesidde siy) o) Joud Aeleipawiw sieak mmsgactsnwco_ﬁazooo
1194} 4o sjieyep anib /7 pue g1 ‘'z co.;mmzce

S8Wweu ssoym suosiad ayj jo yoea jo joadsal y; "8z



JIpUNDS A1 UCIAWEUINOS L00Z-€86} @ €1 jo o1 sbed 19JSUBI | |EMBUSHIURIS - Wi - 1SIXIS

I

4| uono1Au0Q Jo @jeQ | SWEN JAULO E soweuslo

ERITEUETS a2uayQ JO DINJEN|UONIIAUOD JO 3B

_-sasnods 112y} Jo AUE JO SUOHDIAUOD snolaaid AUE JO PUE SUOHOIAUCD snoiaaad J1sy}
j0 sjiejep anb /g pue L} ‘gl 'yl ‘g suonsan o} asuodsal ul USAIB a1e SoWEeU SSOUM salpoq o suosiad ay} Jo Yoes Jo joadsal uj ‘BC



30. Have you any reason to believe that a prosecution may be pending against any
of the persons or bodies whose names are given in response to Questions 2, 14,
16, 17 and 277 If 'Yes' give full details. )
(]

31. Has any person or body named in this application been associated in any way
with any other application for a licence for a sex establishment?

NS
32. s there in force against the applicant or any of the persons or bodies named in
answer to Questions 14, 19, 27 and 29 a disqualification from holding a licence
for a sex establishment under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 19827

If 'Yes' give full details.
aYe

33. Is there any further information which the applicant would wish the Council to
take into account when considering this application?

(This space may also be used to amplify any replies to other questions.)

AEDOTUAME | g

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 11 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southamptan City Council



APPLICANTS ARE WARNED THAT ANY PERSON WHO, IN CONNECTION WITH
AN APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT, RENEWAL OR TRANSFER OF A LICENCE
MAKES A FALSE STATEMENT WHICH HE KNOWS TO BE FALSE IN ANY
MATERIAL RESPECT, OR WHICH HE DOES NOT BELIEVE TO BE TRUE, IS
GUILTY OF AN OFFENCE AND LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE
NOT EXCEEDING £20,000.00

DECLARATION

! MALT o PETEA CASTLE

declare that the information given above is true and complete in every respect
Dated this day of 20
Signature
Name of Signatory (BLOCK CAPITALS) MALTIN PETEAL CASTLE

Designation of Signatory (BLOCK CAPITALS) PLefiic Tol

Applicants are strongly recommended to seek professional legal advice before making

an application for a sex establishment licence. Please note that members of the

Licensing Team are not able to give such advice to applicants in any circumstances.
APPLICANTS ARE REFERRED TO THE ATTACHED NOTES

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 12 of 13 ® 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



SOUTHAMPTON

CITY COUNCIL

Appendix 3

2010/00478/19SEXE

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982,
SECTION 2

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL by virtue of the powers contained in section 2 and schedule 3 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

HEREBY GRANTS to

Martin Peter Castle

of 437a Millbrook Road West, Southampton, SO15 OHX

a licence to use the premises known as

A Taste of Amsterdam

and situate at

437 Millbrook Road West

in the City of Southampton as a

SEX SHOP

until the 24th day of March 2011

SUBJECT: (a) to the regulations for Sex Establishments made by the said Council and in force at
the date hereof

and (b) to conditions nos. 1 to 32, which said standard conditions, as varied, are
incorporated in the list of conditions and restrictions, annexed hereto.

The licence fee of £3500.00 has been received for and on behalf of the Council.
Dated this 25th March 2010

Mr. M.P Castle

A Taste of Amsterdam

437 Millbrook Road West Solicitor to the Council
Southampton for and on behalf of
SO15 0HX Southampton City Council

APP 3 (Licence)
Page 1 of 6



APP 3 (Licence)

This poy2 i

-

9

uznbaraizly (sit Diank

Page 2 of 6

s /=1/t=Wareh 2040



SOUTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCIL

Regulations for Sex Establishments

Southampton City Council, in exercise of the powers conferred upon them by paragraph 13 of
Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1982 and of all other powers
enabling them in that behalf make the following Regulations:

1

(@) Inthese Regulations the following expressions that is to say "Sex Establishment",
"Sex Shop", "Sex Cinema", "Sex Article", and "Vessel" shall have the meanings
respectively assigned to them by Schedule 3 of the Act.

(b) Inthese Regulations the following expressions shall have the meanings hereby
respectively assigned to them namely: -

"the Act" - means the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act,
1982.

"the Council" - means Southampton City Council.

"the licensed means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall licensed under the

premises" - Act.

"licence holder" - means a person who is the holder of a sex establishment
licence.

"permitted hours" -  means the hours during which the licensed premises are
permitted under Regulations 2 and 3 hereof to be open to the
public.

"sex establishment means a licence granted pursuant to Schedule 3 of the Act.
licence" -

Conditions applicable to licences for Sex Establishments

2.

The licensed premises shall be closed throughout Good Friday, Christmas Day and every
Sunday and public holiday and may be open only during the permitted hours prescribed.in
Regulation 3 hereof.

The permitted hours of opening, unless varied by special condition, shall be as follows:-

Mondays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Tuesdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Wednesdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Thursdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Fridays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Saturdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

The licensed premises shall not be used for any purpose other then the business of a sex
establishment.

The licensed premises shall not be open for the purposes for which the sex establishment
licence is granted on any occasion when the Council may signify in writing to the licence
holder, occupier or other person having at the time the care and management of the
premises, that the same should not be open.

No person who is or appears to be under the age of 18 or is known by the licence holder or
any servant or agent of his present on the licensed premises to be under that age shall be
admitted to or shall be permitted to remain on the licensed premises.

APP 3 (Licence)

Page 3 of 6



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The licence holder: -

(a) shall display on the licensed premises in a conspicuous position his sex
establishment licence;

(b) shall exhibit on those premises such notices in such form and in such position as
may be prescribed;

(c) shall comply with any prescribed restriction with respect to the exhibiting of other
written matter or of signs of any description on the licensed premises.

No facilities shall be provided in a sex shop for: -

(a) seeing any television broadcast or the replaying of any video tape or film or other like
matter, except for a looped video recording, the content of which and location of the
equipment shall be approved by the Licensing Officer, nor;

(b) hearing any sound broadcast tape or other like matter other than facilities for the
reception of radio programmes broadcast by the British Broadcasting Corporation or
the Independent Broadcasting Authority.

(c) Atelevision, DVD player and video tape player may be installed in the licensed
premises in a position approved by the Licensing Officer out of sight of customers for
the sole purpose of quality control of recordings made available in the licensed
premises.

No music, dancing or other entertainment whether of a like kind or not shall be provided or
permitted, other than as permitted by Regulation 8 of these Regulations, and no
refreshment of any kind shall be served on nor shall any facilities for the taking of such
refreshment be provided upon the licensed premises.

The licence holder shall exhibit on the exterior of the licensed premises in a position visible
to persons outside the premises a notice, in addition to his name, in not more than one
place, in characters not exceeding three inches in height and consisting only of the words
“licensed sex shop” or “licensed sex cinema” (as the case may be) and such indication, if
any, as he thinks fit to give of the times at which the licensed premises are open. No other
notices, unless pursuant to these Regulations, may be exhibited.

The licence holder shall exhibit in a conspicuous manner and in some conspicuous place
inside the licensed premises and at the point of access to the licensed premises a notice
stating that persons under the age of eighteen years are not admitted thereto.

The licence holder shall not display in any position visible to persons outside the premises
any matter which does not comply with the Indecent Displays (Control) Act 1981.

The licence holder shall not permit any person other than persons employed by him, his
servant or agent, statutory undertakers or, if applicable, his landlord to enter upon any part
of the premises which are not available to the public in connection with the display, sale,
hire, exchange, loan or demonstration of sex articles.

The licence holder shall not display any advertisement which is visible to persons outside
the premises except as permitted by these Regulations or under the Act and no
advertisements shall be displayed wherever visible which depict any article or thing
intended for use in connection with or for the purpose of stimulating or encouraging acts of
force or restraint which are or may be associated with sexual activity.

The licence holder shall ensure that the interior of the sex establishment shall not be
visible to persons outside the premises.

(@) The exterior of the licensed premises shall be of materials approved by the Council

(b) The exterior of the premises shall consist of material and colours of a discreet nature
appropriate to the character of the locality and shall be in keeping with the
appearance of other premises in the vicinity. There shall be no external
advertisements nor shall the frontage contain displays of advertisements of any
nature or permit the interior of the licensed premises to be viewed from outside.

APP 3 (Licence)

Page 4 of 6



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

(c) Detailed proposals for the external appearance of the licensed premises shall be
agreed with the Council’s Licensing Officer within 14 days of the notification of the
determination of the application for a licence and shall be subject to ratification by the
Council’s Licensing (General) Sub-Committee prior to the commencement of
business at the licensed premises.

No illuminated signs or exterior lights shall be affixed to the licensed premises unless
approved by the Licensing Officer and subject to planning permission.

The holder of a sex cinema licence shall observe such regulations and conditions as may
be approved by the Council from time for cinemas having a licence under the Cinemas Act
1985 as shall be applied by the Council by special condition to the sex establishment
licence, giving such reference to the said Cinema licence conditions as may be deemed
appropriate and the regulations and conditions shall have the same force and effect as if
the same where severally contained in these regulations.

The licence holder shall not knowingly allow the licensed premises to be the habitual resort
of a reputed prostitute or the habitual resort or meeting place of reputed prostitutes,
whether the object of their so resorting or meeting is or is not prostitution.

If the Council notifies the licence holder, occupier or other person having at the time the
care and management of the premises in writing by delivering notice at the licensed
premises that any particular sex article, advertisement or matter shall not be displayed the
same shall be withdrawn from view forthwith.

No film or video material shall be kept at the sex establishment except such film or video
material that bears a reproduction of the Certificate of the British Board of Film
Certification.

The licence holder shall comply with all fire and safety requirements of the Council and
maintain and keep available for use all specified fire fighting equipment and extinguishers.

The external doors of the licensed premises shall be fitted with self-closing mechanisms
and such mechanisms shall be maintained in good order. No external door shall be fixed
in the open position at any time during the permitted hours. A “lobby” area will be installed,
the style and design to be approved by the Licensing Officer.

Applicants for the grant, 'renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence or waiver
thereof shall make their application on the form approved from time to time by the Council
returnable to the office of the Solicitor to the Council together with the approved fee (where
a sex establishment licence is required). A copy of the application in all cases shall be
sent to the Chief Constable of Hampshire Constabulary, West Hill, Winchester not later
than 7 days after the date of the application to the Council.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall advertise
notice of their application in the form approved by the Council and in accordance with the
prescribed dimensions by publishing the advertisement in a local newspaper circulating in
Southampton not later than 7 days after the date of the application. A copy of the
advertisement as published and date of publication shall be lodged with the Council
forthwith.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall display a
notice in the form approved by the Council and furnish two completed copies to the
Council forthwith so that a copy may be sent to the appropriate public library. The Notice
shall be displayed at the premises to be licensed for 21 days beginning with the date of the
application to the Council and in a place where the notice can be inspected and
conveniently read by the public from outside the premises.

A police officer or an authorised officer of the Council may at any reasonable time enter
and inspect any premises in respect of which a sex establishment licence is for the time
being in force.

APP 3 (Licence)

Page 5 of 6



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

The licence holder or some responsible person, being 21 years of age or over, nominated
by him in writing shall be in attendance at the premises at all such times as the premises
are open to the public and any nomination shall be produced to any police officer or
authorised officer of the Council and give the name and address of the person nominated.

A closed circuit television system shall be installed in the licensed premises to the
satisfaction of the Council’s Licensing Officer. The system shall efficiently record the
operation of the licensed premises and shall automatically indicate the date and time of the
events recorded to a standard that would be acceptable as evidence in the Courts. All
closed circuit television recordings shall be retained for a minimum of 28 days and shall be
made available at the licensed premises for inspection by a police officer or an authorised
officer of the Council.

The licensee shall notify the Council and Hampshire Constabulary of the name, address
and date of birth of any manager or employee involved in the operation of the business at
the licensed premises within seven days of them commencing employment. The City
Council shall reserve the right to object to any person being involved in the operation of the
business at the licensed premises where it considers them unsuitable, in particular by
reason of relevant unspent criminal convictions.

The licensee shall produce and maintain a list of all stock carried at the licensed premises
and shall make it available to a police officer or authorised officer of the Council on
demand.

The rear door of the premises will be closed to customers save as required as an
emergency exit in pursuance to Fire and Health and Safety Regulations.

LL19/0012 — March 2010

APP 3 (Licence)

Page 6 of 6



Appendix 4

Regulations for Sex Establishments

Southampton City Council, in exercise of the powers conferred upon them by paragraph
13 of Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1982 and of
all other powers enabling them in that behalf make the following Regulations:

(a) Inthese Regulations the following expressions that is to say "Sex
Establishment", "Sex Shop", "Sex Cinema", "Sex Article", and "Vessel" shall
have the meanings respectively assigned to them by Schedule 3 of the Act.

(b) Inthese Regulations the following expressions shall have the meanings
hereby respectively assigned to them namely:-

"the Act” -

"the Council” -

“licensed
premises"

"licence holder" -

"permitted hours" -

"sex establishment
licence" -

means the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act, 1982.

means Southampton City Council.

means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall licensed
under the Act.

means a person who is the holder of a sex
establishment licence.

means the hours during which the licensed premises
are permitted under Regulations 2 and 3 hereof to be
open to the public.

means a licence granted pursuant to Schedule 3 of the
Act.

Conditions applicable to licences for Sex Establishments

2.

The licensed premises shall be closed throughout Good Friday, Christmas Day
and every Sunday and public holiday and may be open only during the permitted
hours prescribed in Regulation 3 hereof.

The permitted hours of opening, unless varied by special condition, shall be as

follows: -
Mondays
Tuesdays
Wednesdays
Thursdays
Fridays
Saturdays

9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

The licensed premises shall not be used for any purpose other then the business

of a sex establishment.



10.

11.

12.

The licensed premises shall not be open for the purposes for which the sex
establishment licence is granted on any occasion when the Council may signify in
writing to the licence holder, occupier or other person having at the time the care
and management of the premises, that the same should not be open.

No person who is or appears to be under the age of 18 or is known by the licence
holder or any servant or agent of his present on the licensed premises to be under
that age shall be admitted to or shall be permitted to remain on the licensed
premises.

The licence holder:-

(a) shall display on the licensed premises in a conspicuous position his sex
establishment licence;

(b) shall exhibit on those premises such notices in such form and in such
position as may be prescribed;

(c) shall comply with any prescribed restriction with respect to the exhibiting of
other written matter or of signs of any description on the licensed premises.

No facilities shall be provided in a sex shop for:-

(a) see any television broadcast or the replaying of any video tape or film or
other like matter nor;

(b) hearing any sound broadcast tape or other like matter other than facilities
for the reception of radio programmes broadcast by the British
Broadcasting Corporation or the Independent Broadcasting Authority.

No music, dancing or other entertainment whether of a like kind or not shall be
provided or permitted, other than as permitted by Regulation 8 of these
Regulations, and no refreshment of any kind shall be served on nor shall any
facilities for the taking of such refreshment be provided upon the licensed
premises.

The licence holder shall exhibit on the exterior of the licensed premises in a
position visible to persons outside the premises a notice, in addition to his name,
in not more than one place, in characters not exceeding three inches in height
and consisting only of the words “licensed sex shop” or “licensed sex cinema”
(as the case may be) and such indication, if any, as he thinks fit to give of the
times at which the licensed premises are open. No other notices, unless
pursuant to these Regulations, may be exhibited.

The licence holder shall exhibit in a conspicuous manner and in some
conspicuous place inside the licensed premises and at the point of access to the
licensed premises a notice stating that persons under the age of eighteen years
are not admitted thereto.

The licence holder shall not display in any position visible to persons outside the
premises any matter which does not comply with the Indecent Displays (Control)
Act 1981.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

The licence holder shall not permit any person other than persons employed by
him, his servant or agent, statutory undertakers or, if applicable, his landlord to
enter upon any part of the premises which are not available to the public in
connection with the display, sale, hire, exchange, loan or demonstration of sex
articles.

The licence holder shall not display any advertisement which is visible to
persons outside the premises except as permitted by these Regulations or under
the Act and no advertisements shall be displayed wherever visible which depict
any article or thing intended for use in connection with or for the purpose of
stimulating or encouraging acts of force or restraint which are or may be
associated with sexual activity.

The licence holder shall ensure that the interior of the sex establishment shall
not be visible to persons outside the premises.

The exterior of the licensed premises shall be of materials approved by the
Council.

No illuminated signs or exterior lights shall be affixed to the licensed premises
unless approved by the Council.

The holder of a sex cinema licence shall observe such regulations and
conditions as may be approved by the Council from time for cinemas having a
licence under the Cinemas Act 1985 as shall be applied by the Council by
special condition to the sex establishment licence, giving such reference to the
said cinema licence conditions as may be deemed appropriate and the
regulations and conditions shall have the same force and effect as if the same
where severally contained in these regulations.

The licence holder shall not knowingly allow the licensed premises to be the
habitual resort of a reputed prostitute or the habitual resort or meeting place of
reputed prostitutes, whether the object of their so resorting or meeting is or is not
prostitution.

If the Council notifies the licence holder, occupier or other person having at the
time the care and management of the premises in writing by delivering notice at
the licensed premises that any particular sex article, advertisement or matter
shall not be displayed the same shall be withdrawn from view forthwith.

No film or video material shall be kept at the sex establishment except such film
or video material that bears a reproduction of the Certificate of the British Board
of Film Certification.

The licence holder shall comply with all fire and safety requirements of the
Council and maintain and keep available for use all specified fire fighting
equipment and extinguishers.

The external doors of the licensed premises shall be fitted with self closing
mechanisms and such mechanisms shall be maintained in good order. No
external door shall be fixed in the open position at any time during the permitted
hours.



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence or
waiver thereof shall make their application on the form approved from time to
time by the Council returnable to the office of the Head of Legal & Democratic
Services together with the approved fee (where a sex establishment licence is
required). A copy of the application in all cases shall be sent to the Chief
Constable of Hampshire Constabulary, West Hill, Winchester, not later than 7
days after the date of the application to the Council.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall
advertise notice of their application in the form approved by the Council and in
accordance with the prescribed dimensions by publishing the advertisement in a
local newspaper circulating in Southampton not later than 7 days after the date
of the application. A copy of the advertisement as published and date of
publication shall be lodged with the Council forthwith.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall
display a notice in the form approved by the Council and furnish two completed
copies to the Council forthwith so that a copy may be sent to the appropriate
public library. The Notice shall be displayed at the premises to be licensed for
21 days beginning with the date of the application to the Council and in a place
where the notice can be inspected and conveniently read by the public from
outside the premises.

A police officer or an authorised officer of the Council may at any reasonable
time enter and inspect any premises in respect of which a sex establishment
licence is for the time being in force.

The licence holder or some responsible person, being 21 years of age or over,
nominated by him in writing shall be in attendance at the premises at all such
times as the premises are open to the public and any nomination shall be
produced to any police officer or authorised officer of the Council and give the
name and address of the person nominated.



Agenda Iltem 8

ITEM NO:
DECISION-MAKER: LICENSING (GENERAL) SUB-COMMITTEE
SUBJECT: APPLICATION FOR RENEWAL OF A SEX SHOP
LICENCE — HIDDEN ASSETS, 439 MILLBROOK ROAD
WEST
DATE OF DECISION: 15T JUNE 2011
REPORT OF: SOLICITOR TO THE COUNCIL
AUTHOR: Name:  JOHN WHITE Tel: | 02380832749

E-mail:  john.white@southampton.gov.uk

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY
Not applicable.

SUMMARY

The Sub-Committee is requested to determine the application for the renewal of a sex
shop licence from Mr. Matthew Barry Caplen Smith in respect of premises at 439
Millborook Road West and the further request to make two variations to the current
licence.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

(i) For the Sub-Committee to consider the application and any
subsequent objections before deciding whether to grant renewal of
the licence as requested by the applicant.

(i) For the Sub-Committee to separately consider the requests from the
applicant for the premises to be able to trade on Sundays and for
additional signage to be permitted to be displayed on the front
exterior of the premises, before deciding whether to grant the

requests.
REASONS FOR REPORT RECOMMENDATIONS
1. Under the Council’s current scheme of delegation, the determination of

applications for the renewal and / or applications to vary sex shop licences
are matters for the Sub-Committee and are not delegated to officers.

CONSULTATION

2. Applicants for the renewal of a sex shop licence are required to display a
notice on the premises to be licensed for 21 days and advertise in a local
newspaper circulating in Southampton.

3. Applicants for the renewal of a sex shop licence are required to supply a copy
of the application to the Chief Constable of Hampshire Constabulary.

4. Any person objecting to an application for the renewal of a sex shop licence
shall give notice of in writing to the local authority, not later than 28 days after
the date of the application.

5. No objections have been received from residential, business and institutional



addresses within the period of notice.

Hampshire Constabulary have confirmed that they have no objection to the
application.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED

7.
DETAIL

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

None.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Southampton City Council first adopted the provisions of Part Il of the Local
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 with effect from 16th March
1983.

In April 1984, the Council determined the relevant localities in respect of the
premises then under consideration.

The plans of the two areas showing the relevant localities are held by the
Licensing Team at Southbrook Rise, with the first area being Kingsland
Place/St. Mary Street and the second area being East Street.

Following High Court challenges to other local authorities’ adoption of the
legislation, the City Council was advised by Counsel in 1995 that it would be
appropriate to readopt the provisions. The Council resolved the adoption of
schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 on
10 April 1995, with the provisions coming into effect from 3 July 1995. Notices
setting out the effect of the provisions were published in the Southern Daily
Echo on 5 and 12 May 1995.

The Licensing and Public Safety Panel subsequently considered the
application for a sex shop licence in respect of 439 Millborook Road West in
July 2003 and resolved to grant the licence subject to conditions.

At present there are a total of four licensed sex shops within Southampton,
including the premises at 439 Millbrook Road West. The other three shops
are located in Hanover Buildings, Howard Road and Millbrook Road West.

THE APPLICATION AND RELEVANT LOCALITY

The Committee (or its predecessors) has not previously considered the issue
of determining an appropriate number of sex establishments within a relevant
locality which would include these premises.

However two such areas (not including these premises) had previously been
decided by the City Council and the background information relating to this is
set out above.

APPLICATION DETAILS

A copy of the application for the renewal of a sex shop licence in respect of
439 Millbrook Road West is attached to this report as Appendix 2.

The applicant is Mr. Matthew Barry Caplen Smith, of whom further details
are given in the application. The applicant has held the licence in respect of
439 Millbrook Road West since the original grant of it in 2003, with the
licence being renewed annually upon anniversary of grant.



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.
25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

Notice of the application was placed in the Southern Daily Echo on 25"
March 2011.

On 30" March 2011 a Licensing Officer witnessed that the notice of the
application was exhibited on the front window of 439 Millbrook Road West.
The applicant has confirmed that this notice was exhibited in accordance
with the legislation.

In addition to the application to renew the licence, the applicant has made a
request to make variations to the terms of the current licence.

The first of these requests seeks permission for the shop to open and trade
from 10 am to 5 pm on Sundays, except those Sundays that fall on religious
holidays such as Christmas Day (Boxing Day) and Easter Sunday. Condition
number 2 on the current licence (a standard condition which currently applies
to all sex shops licensed by the City Council) prohibits the shop from trading
on any Sunday. At present, the premises are permitted to trade from 9 am to
8 pm Monday to Saturday in line with all of the sex shops licensed by the
City Council.

The second of these requests seeks permission to vary conditions number
10 and 14 of the current licence to allow for seasonal 'SALE’ signs to be
displayed periodically in front right hand window of the shop. The proposal is
that only lettering will be used in these signs and that no items will be
advertised or described in any way. The applicant has provided examples of
the proposed wording of the signs as follows:

“‘CHRSITAMS SALE - UP TO % OFF”
“‘SUMMER SALE - UP TO % OFF”
“VALENTINES SALE — UP TO % OFF”
“‘CLEARANCE”

The Licensing Manager, having considered the request to add signage to the
shop front made by the applicant, has agreed in principal to the proposal,
which it is felt will maintain the discreet nature of the exterior of the premises
and will be in keeping with the character of the locality and the appearance
of other premises in the vicinity. However any implementation of the proposal
is subject to ratification by the committee, in accordance with condition
number 16 (c) of the current licence.

A photograph of the current frontage of the shop is attached as Appendix 3.

The current licence conditions for 439 Millbrook Road West can be viewed
on the current licence which is attached as Appendix 5.

A number of inspections of the premises have taken place throughout the
past year to ensure that the licence conditions are being adhered to. No
breaches of licence conditions or concerns about the manner in which this
shop has operated have been identified within the last year.

The applicant has been invited to attend the Sub-Committee’s meeting.
PROPOSED TRADING ACTIVITIES

At present, the premises sells by retail goods including lingerie and other
clothing items, videos, DVDs, magazines and other marital aids.

British Board of Film Classification (BBFC) Restricted 18 (R18) classified



30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

video recordings are also sold at the premises (such video recordings may
contain pornographic images). The Video Recordings Act 1984 makes it an
offence to supply an R18 classified video recording except in a licensed sex
shop and also makes it an offence to supply an unclassified video recording.

It is understood that should the renewal application be granted then the
applicant will continue with such trading activities.

Members should note that a sex establishment licence does not permit the
sale of any goods that are prohibited in law, in particular by the Obscene
Publications Act 1964.

If the Sub-Committee grant the application for renewal of the licence, it may
be on such terms and conditions and subject to such restrictions as the Sub-
Committee may specify.

THE LEGISLATION - DEFINITIONS

Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
sets out the framework for the consideration of applications for sex shop
licences.

The legislation requires that no person shall, in any area in which the sex
establishment licensing provisions have been adopted, use any premises,
vehicle, vessel or stall as a sex establishment except under and in
accordance with the terms of a licence granted by the appropriate authority.

A “sex establishment” is either a sex shop or a sex cinema. This report
concerns an application for a licence to use premises as a sex shop.

A “sex shop” is defined by the legislation as follows: "any premises, vehicle,
vessel or stall used for a business which consists to a significant degree of
selling, hiring, exchanging, lending, displaying or demonstrating sex articles
or other things intended for use in connection with, or for the purpose of
stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which
are associated with sexual activity".

A “sex article” is defined as: “anything made for use in connection with, or for
the purpose of stimulating or encouraging—

a) sexual activity; or
b) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; and

c) to any article containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at or
anything intended to be used, either alone or as one of a set, for the
reproduction or manufacture of any such article; and

d) to any recording vision or sound, which is concerned primarily with the
portrayal of, or primarily deals with or relates to, or is intended to stimulate or
encourage, sexual activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated
with sexual activity; or is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or
primarily deals with or relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory
functions.”

THE LEGISLATION - NOTICES AND OBJECTORS

Applicants are required to display a public notice at the premises for 21 days
and, in addition, publish in a local newspaper a notice inviting written



39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

objections.

The names and addresses of objectors must be kept confidential unless the
objectors indicate otherwise.

The Act does not provide objectors with a right to be heard in person by the
Sub-Committee. If appropriate, those persons from whom valid objections
have been received have been advised of the date and time of the meeting
and have also been advised that they may only address the meeting at the
invitation of the Sub-Committee.

If granted, sex shop licences are in force for one year or for such shorter
periods specified in the licence as the Sub-Committee may think fit.

Under the Council’s current scheme of delegation, the renewal of any such
licence would be a matter for the Sub-Committee.

THE LEGISLATION - APPLICATION PROCEDURE

Paragraph 10 of Schedule 3 to the Act requires an application to be made in
writing to the appropriate authority and to state the full name of the applicant,
his permanent address and his age. In the case of an application made by a
body corporate or an unincorporated body, the full name of the body, the
address of its registered or principal office and the full names and private
address of the directors or other persons responsible for its management are
required to be provided.

In addition, the full address of the premises must be given.

The applicant is required to send a copy of the application to the Chief
Officer of Police within seven days of the date of the application and any
objections to the application must be made in writing to the City Council not
later than 28 days after the date of the application.

The City Council is required, before considering the application, to give
notice in writing of the general terms of any objection to the applicant. The
Licensing Officer has forwarded transcripts of each objection (without
identifying the objector, unless consent has been given) to the applicants.

The Act requires that, in considering any application for the grant of a
licence, the Sub-Committee shall have regard to any observations submitted
to them by the Chief of Police, and any objections of which notice has been
sent to them within the 28-day period referred to above.

The City Council is required to give an applicant an opportunity of appearing
before and being heard by the Sub-Committee before the application is
determined.

A note of the procedure that the Sub-Committee has adopted for
consideration of applications of this kind is attached as Appendix 1.

THE LEGISLATION - OBJECTIONS

The legislation requires the Sub-Committee, in considering an application, to
have regard to any observations made by the Chief of Police and to any
objections of which proper notice has been given.

The Sub-Committee has the discretion, subject to the restrictions mentioned
below, to invite objectors, who have given written notice of their objections,



52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

57.

58.

59.

60.

to address the Sub-Committee.

At the hearing itself the Sub-Committee has a discretion to allow objections
to be heard subject to:

a) only those objectors whose written objections have been received before
the end of the 28 day period may be heard (subject to (e) below);

b) those objections confined to putting forward only points which are relevant
to consideration of the grounds of refusal and which were contained in
written objections referred to in (a) above;

c) if the objectors are heard this should precede the hearing afforded to the
applicant and the applicant should be given the opportunity of hearing and
noting what the objectors say.

d) The objectors and the applicant may not ask questions of each other.

e) The Sub-Committee may, at their discretion, consider objections or
representations made out of time. Such discretion can only be exercised if
the applicant has been afforded reasonable time to consider the content prior
to the hearing.

Members are encouraged to approach this application in three steps:

a) ldentify an area of reasonably consistent character within which the
premises falls, and consider this application on its own merits.

b) Consider whether the grant of a licence to the applicant for this use of the
premises would be inappropriate given the character of that area.

c) Consider the location of other licensed sex shops given the area’s nature
and environs and the resultant effect.

THE LEGISLATION - LICENCE CONDITIONS

The City Council has a power under the Act to make regulations prescribing
standard conditions on or subject to which sex shop licences are, in general,
to be granted. The City Council has made such regulations.

These may include the hours of opening and closing of sex establishments,
displays or advertisements on or in such establishments, the visibility of the
interior of sex establishments to passers-by and any change of a sex cinema
to a sex shop or vice versa. All such conditions are presumed to apply to
every licence granted unless they have been expressly excluded or varied.

In addition, the Indecent Displays (Control) Act 1981 prohibits the public
display of any indecent matter unless access is only on payment or the
display is in a shop that can only be accessed by passing beyond a warning
notice. No person under the age of 18 may be permitted to enter.

The warning notice must contain the following words: “WARNING - persons
passing beyond this notice will find material on display which they may
consider to be indecent. No admittance to persons under 18 years of age”.

THE LEGISLATION - CRITERIA

Written reasons must be given to the applicant within seven days of the
applicant requesting the information from the City Council.

Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 to the Act sets out both mandatory and
discretionary grounds for the refusal of an application for a licence.



61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

A licence shall not be granted:
a) to a person under the age of 18; or

b) to a person who has had such a licence revoked, within 12 months of that
revocation; or

c) to a person other than a body corporate who is not resident in the United
Kingdom or was not so resident throughout the period of 6 months
immediately preceding the date when the application was made; or

d) to a body corporate which is not incorporated in the United Kingdom; or

e) to a person who has, within the period of 12 months immediately
preceding the date when the application was made, been refused the grant
or renewal of a licence for the premises in respect of which the application is
made, unless the refusal has been reversed on appeal.

The Sub-Committee may refuse an application for the grant of a licence on
one or more of the following grounds:

a) that the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having
been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

b) that if the licence were to be granted, the business to which it relates
would be managed by or carried on for the benefit of a person, other than the
applicant, who would be refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a
licence if he made the application himself;

c) that the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time
the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the
authority consider is appropriate for that locality;

d) that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having
regard;

i) to the character of the relevant locality; or

ii) to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or

iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises in respect of which
the application is made.

The Act provides that nil may be an appropriate number of premises in “the
relevant locality.”

The “relevant locality” is defined by the Act as meaning, in relation to the
premises, the locality in which it is situated.

Although the Council has, in the past, determined appropriate numbers of
sex shops for specific localities, it is considered advisable to merely deal with
this application on its merits and not to embark on an additional exercise of
determining a precise “relevant locality” and an appropriate number of
establishments in it. Such an exercise is only recommended if after having
regard to the area generally (and in accordance with paragraph 57 of this
Report) it is felt that the number and / or proximity of premises may be
inappropriate.

In assessing the application, Members should consider any objections in the
light of the statutory grounds of refusal. In doing so Members may call on
their own moral sense in reaching a view as to what is appropriate in any
particular location.



68. Members, in determining the application, should consider each of these
issues and determine whether grant or refusal is appropriate and, if so, why.

69. However, it would not be lawful to refuse the application merely because
Members consider sex shops are immoral or should not be permitted.
Further, there are discretionary grounds of refusal. Members have a residual
discretion to grant an application despite it falling within one of these
grounds, but Members should only do so in these circumstances for good
reasons, which would need to be specified.

THE LEGISLATION - APPEALS

70. An applicant for the grant of a sex shop licence, whose application has been
refused, may appeal within twenty-one days of the giving of written notice of
the grounds of the refusal, to the Magistrates' Court.

71. However, there is no right of appeal if the refusal is on one of the mandatory

grounds:

a) applicant under 18

b) applicant disqualified

c) applicant not resident in the United Kingdom

d) body not incorporated in the United Kingdom

e) licence refused for the premises within 12 months

unless the applicant seeks to show that the ground did not apply to him.

72. In addition there is no right of appeal against a decision by the Sub-
Committee that the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at
the time the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which the
authority consider appropriate for that locality or that the grant of a licence
would be inappropriate having regard to the character of the relevant locality,

or to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or to the layout,
character or condition of the premises in respect of which the application is

made.

73. Appeal against the decision of a Magistrates’ Court may be made to the
Crown Court.

74. Similarly, if a licence is granted, a right of appeal exists against any term,

condition or restriction on or subject to which the licence is held.
FINANCIAL/RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS

Capital

75. There are no financial implications.

Revenue

76. Not applicable.

Property

77. Not applicable.

Other

78. The work involved for the licensing team in bringing this renewal to the



committee is contained within existing budgets.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
Statutory power to undertake proposals in the report:

79.

Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982
sets out the City Councils power to renew a sex shop licence.

Other Legal Implications:

80.

81.

THE LEGISLATION - CRIME AND DISORDER ACT 1998

Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 places the Council under a
duty to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to
prevent, crime and disorder in its area.

THE LEGISLATION - HUMAN RIGHTS ACT 1998

The Act requires UK legislation to be interpreted in a manner consistent with
the European Convention on Human Rights. It is unlawful for the Council to
act in a way that is incompatible (or fail to act in a way that is compatible) with
the rights protected by the Act. Any action undertaken by the Council that
could have an effect upon another person’s Human Rights must be taken
having regard to the principle of proportionality - the need to balance the
rights of the individual with the rights of the community as a whole. Any action
taken by the Council which affects another's rights must be no more onerous
than is necessary in a democratic society. The matter set out in this report
must be considered in light of the above obligations.

POLICY FRAMEWORK IMPLICATIONS

82.

The decision to determine the application in the manner set out in this report
is not contrary to the council’s policy framework.



SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Appendices

1. Procedure for hearing the application

2. Application for renewal of a sex shop licence for Hidden Assets, 439 Millbrook
Road West, Southampton

3. Photograph of current shop frontage

4. Sex shop standard conditions

5. Current licence for Hidden Assets, 439 Millbrook Road West, Southampton

Documents In Members’ Rooms

1. None.

Background Documents

Title of Background Paper(s) Relevant Paragraph of the
Access to Information
Procedure Rules / Schedule
12A allowing document to be
Exempt/Confidential (if
applicable)

1. Application for a sex shop licence

2. Response from Police

Background documents available for inspection at:
FORWARD PLAN No: KEY DECISION?
WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED:

10




APPENDIX 1
Special Procedure for the Licensing (General) Sub-Committee — Applications for
Sex Establishment licences
One of the Council's Corporate Legal Advisors will be in attendance throughout the
proceedings and he/she is there to advise Members. Sub-Committee Members may seek
clarification on points of procedure at any time.

Please note that the Sub-Committee will normally adjourn for lunch at 1:00 p.m.
and that comfort breaks will be taken at the discretion of the Chair at appropriate
points during the meeting.

1. INTRODUCTION

L4 Everyone to introduce themselves
¢  The Licensing Officer will introduce the report, including background information
and any written objections received.
¢ Members' questions to the Licensing Officer
2. OBJECTORS

If Objectors (including Police) have attended indicating a wish to address the Sub-
Committee the Sub-Committee will consider each request in light of its discretion
to permit oral representations.

As a guide, such representations will only be permitted if appropriate in order to
briefly summarise and expand upon the main points of objection as set out in
written submissions. Mere recitation of previous written submissions will not be
permitted, nor will the introduction of entirely new grounds of objection.

Questions of Objectors will not be permitted by any party (including Members).
3. APPLICATION
The applicant or their representative will outline the details of the application and
call any witnesses in support.
Questions may be asked of the applicant or of any witnesses by:
Licensing Officer
Members of the Sub-Committee

The applicant may call supporting witnesses at their discretion during the
presentation of their application. Questions may be asked by the Sub-Committee
Members / Licensing Officer of such witnesses at any appropriate point in their
presentation

If any written objections have been received the applicant or their representative
will be invited to comment on them

4. SUMMING UP
The applicant or their representative will have a final opportunity to sum up their
application.

5. CONSIDERATION OF DECISION - CONFIDENTIAL SESSION

Members of the Sub-Committee will retire to consider the decision. In doing so the
Solicitor to the Sub-Committee and the Sub-Committee Administrator will retire
with them, but will take no part in the discussion of the merits of the case or what
the decision should be



Should the Solicitor to the Sub-Committee be required to clarify any points of law,
these will be repeated in the public session.

6. ANNOUNCEMENT OF DECISION

Sub-Committee Members will return and the Chair of the Sub-Committee will
deliver the decision in public session. The Licensing Officer will confirm this
decision in writing to the Applicant within 7 days of the Sub-Committee decision,
together with details of any relevant right of appeal.

Note:  Thjs procedure note is issued as a guide only — the order and conduct of business
may be varied by the person presiding at any time in order to facilitate the
determination of the matter, having regard to statutory restrictions and the rules of
natural justice.



LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT

APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT*/RENEWAL*/TRANSFER* OF A

Appendix 2

1982, SECTION 2

LICENCE TO USE ANY PREMISES, VEHICLE, VESSEL OR STALL  JUUTHAMPTON

1.

AS A SEX ESTABLISHMENT CITY COUNCIL

Is the application being made:

(a) by an individual; or
on behalf of a partnership; or

AbY
ey a body corporate?

Give the full names of the applicant (i.e. the individual, partnership, body
corporate or unincorporated body making application). If the applicant is an
individual any former names must also be given.

(Aot B € Sudh

Give the applicant's permanent home address (if an individual) or registered or
principal office (if a partnership, body corporate, or unincorporated body) and a
telephone number at which the applicant may be contacted during normal office

hours. "_1_ "T'Q’(;(eu( clete , Wcrh‘“}& SO TR
S0i6 aNT

Is the application in respect of a sex shop or a sex cinema?

Sex shop

Is the application in respect of

(a) premises; or
by a vehicle; or
ey avessel or
(Y a stall?

Where the Licence is sought in respect of a vehicle, vessel or stall state where it
is to be used as a sex establishment.
,m-"‘”f—#

T
R
L

Where the Licence is sought in respect of premises give the full address cf the
premises, including the postcode. Ljfﬁ sl i Rel wa&-‘Q 2y el

QIS oH X

Are the whole of the premises described in response to Question 7 above to be
used as a sex establishment?

X

1 8 MAR 2011

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 10f 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



If the answer to Question 8 above is "No" please state
(a) which parts of the premises are to be used for the purposes of a sex
establishment;

(b) the uses to which the remainder of the premises are to be put;

(€) the names, addresses and dates of birth of those who are responsible
for the management of the remainder of the premises.

10. Are the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in use as a sex establishment at the
date of this application? Q
LS
11. Were the premises, vehicle, vessel or stall in use as a sex establishment on
22nd December 19817 )
NO
12. Under what names are or will the premises be known?
Hiddea Assote
13, If the applicant is an individual give the following information:
(a) Date of birth; Oi?/{‘.\'—}'{? i
(b) Place of birth; “KnASe«
(c) Nationality. /‘_%ra’ SN

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 2 of 13 @ 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



14. If the applicant is a partnership, body corporate or an unincorporated body complete the table in respect of each of the Directors,
the Company Secretary or other persons responsible for the management of the body. In the case of a partnership details of all
the partners must be given.

Forename

Surname

Former name
(if any)

Home Address

Capacity

Date of Birth

Place of
Birth

Nationality

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer

Page 3¢f 13

© 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



15. Complete the table below in respect of each of the individuals whose names are given in response to questions 2 and 14 above.

Names

Date of Birth

If place of birth is not within UK
give date when UK residence
commenced.

Address or permanent residence throughout six
months immediately preceding the date of this
application.

Mattews B €. Saactle

oF [

—

L -Tefrey close , Maglaosle Soond

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer

Page 4 o7 13

© 1983-2007 Southampton City Council




16.  This question need only be answered where the applicant is a Company.
(@) Is the applicant a wholly or partly owned subsidiary of another Company?

(b)  What type of Company is the applicant (e.g. public or private limited by share or
guarantee etc.?)

(¢)  Inwhich Country is the Company incorporated?
(d) What is the date of incorporation of the Company?
(e)  Supply a certified copy of the applicant Company's Memorandum and Articles.

® If the applicant is a subsidiary of another Company give the following details and
information:-

(i) A list of all other companies controlled by the holding company together
with full details of any ultimate holding company.

(ii) A certified copy of the Memorandum and Articles of the parent company

(il ~ The names and addresses of the Directors and Company Secretary of the
parent company (use a separate sheet if necessary).

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 5 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



Jiounog Ajg uoldweyInog £00z-£864 & £1j0 g obed 13SUBILIBMAUSHIUBID - WO - 15TX3S

sBuipjoy [ yuig jo aeq | sseippy # awieN

‘s1apjoyareys Buluiewsal jo jaquinu ay) pue |eyded aleys
panssi ay} Jo alow 1o 9,0l Bulpjoy siapjoyaleys jo sbuipjoy pue sassaippe ‘saweu jo si ||} e aalb Auedwod e s| juedidde a




18.  Has the applicant a financial interest in the business which is the subject of this
application? If 'yes' to what extent? N,,]
L

19.  Is the whole of the business owned by thejapplicant? l\f O

*20. If the whole of the business is not owned by the applicant state the names and
addresses of those who will share in the profits of the business. In each case
state the percentage share to be taken by each individual.

21. Is the applicant concerned in any other way financially or otherwise with any
other business? \.{ _{;})

22.  If the answer to Question 21 is 'yes' give full details of the other business and the
nature and extent of the connection.

23. Is the business required to purchase merchandise from a particular company,
person or body? If 'yes' supply a copy of any agreement and state what is to be
purchased and from whom. NO

24.  Supply scale plans of the premises clearly showing the interior layout and the use
of each part (see note C).

25.  What means are to be taken to prevent the interior of the premises being visible
to persons outside the premises? N 1‘3(

26. Give details of the times during which it is proposed to open the premises:-

(a) Days of the week  WAON — SAT ﬂ . Svﬂbﬂ"fﬁ
b) Hours of the day & aud — Spat 1O am — P

)
. o . § sl
$(30) Ned Yoha Tl | Jamimes Roombhouih lave oo

ey SOl BAY | |
/') V14 L o :[ . = . -
@ Liceahil | _BJ)CA"@TICN\ | 'ﬂw\cﬁ;«g&h !\cﬁ\wéa{w~,:ﬂi . ))c,rsg-{* rA'ﬁf 35‘7525

W
(w"!)

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 7 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



jouneg AND uoidweyinos 00Z-€861 @ 1 jo g sbed

13JSUBI ] [EMAUDHIUEIS) - WO - 1 STXIS

| TR, N
NP - e 2990 S e, )TN
LY
(Mn apisino
yuig jo ased Ji) Mn (Aue
ayj ul Juapisal awesaq yuig yuig ssalppy J1) sweu
AyjeuoneN yoiym uodn ajeq jo aose|d jo ajeq QWOH jusaueulad 19W104 aweuInsg| aweualod

-:sjiejap Bumoijoy ayy Aiddns esee|d
Jap|oy 2oULDl| 8Y) J0 Soussye ay; ul sesiwald ay) Jo Juswabeuew ay) 1o} s|qisuodsal aq 0) S| OYM [ENPIAIPUI YoeS JO Joadsal u| 12




28. In respect of each of the persons whose names are given in response to Question 2, 14, 16 and 27 give details of their
occupations during the 5 years immediately prior to this application. These must include the names and addresses of all
employers and the nature and dates of employment.

Forename |  Surname | Former name (ifany) | Employers Name and Address | Description of nature of work
MATTHEW BwarTrl m. iN THIS Bwlagivedd m,_\ Vel S eus)-
Z.ﬁ rﬂ .J\.aufgr’*..mﬁ\d A L e LY

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 8 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



29. In respect of each of the persons or bodies whose names are given in response to Questions 2, 14, 16, 17 and 27 give details of
their previous convictions and of any previous convictions of any of their spouses:-

Forenames Surname Former Name | Date of Conviction [Place of Conviction|Nature of Offence Sentence

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 10 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



30.

Have you any reason to believe that a prosecution may be pending against any
of the persons or bodies whose names are given in response to Questions 2, 14,
16, 17 and 277 If 'Yes' give full details. NO

31

Has any person or body named in this application been associated in any way
with any other application for a licence for a sex establishment? L{ .éf})

32.

Is there in force against the applicant or any of the persons or bodies named in
answer to Questions 14, 19, 27 and 29 a disqualification from holding a licence
for a sex establishment under the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 19827

If 'Yes' give full details. /\[O

33.

Is there any further information which the applicant would wish the Council to
take into account when considering this application?

(This space may also be used to amplify any replies to other questions.)

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 11 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



APPLICANTS ARE WARNED THAT ANY PERSON WHO, IN CONNECTION WITH
AN APPLICATION FOR THE GRANT, RENEWAL OR TRANSFER OF A LICENCE
MAKES A FALSE STATEMENT WHICH HE KNOWS TO BE FALSE IN ANY
MATERIAL RESPECT, OR WHICH HE DOES NOT BELIEVE TO BE TRUE, IS
GUILTY OF AN OFFENCE AND LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE
NOT EXCEEDING £20,000.00

DECLARATION
| 'ib(- ) ?-3 C. =-8"-" yTH
declare that the information given above is true and complete in every respect
Dated this U Rk day of fAARCH 201 |
Signature__
Name of Signawy (pcuun LAPITALS) L. /\’3 C gM L T

Designation of Signatory (BLOCK CAPITALS)__}lan{ AGER

Applicants are strongly recommended to seek professional legal advice before making

an application for a sex establishment licence. Please note that members of the

Licensing Team are not able to give such advice to applicants in any circumstances.
APPLICANTS ARE REFERRED TO THE ATTACHED NOTES

SEXEST - Form - GrantRenewalTransfer Page 12 of 13 © 1983-2007 Southampton City Council



Appendix 3




Appendix 4

Regulations for Sex Establishments

Southampton City Council, in exercise of the powers conferred upon them by paragraph
13 of Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1982 and of
all other powers enabling them in that behalf make the following Regulations:

(a) Inthese Regulations the following expressions that is to say "Sex
Establishment", "Sex Shop", "Sex Cinema", "Sex Article", and "Vessel" shall
have the meanings respectively assigned to them by Schedule 3 of the Act.

(b) Inthese Regulations the following expressions shall have the meanings
hereby respectively assigned to them namely:-

"the Act” -

"the Council” -

“licensed
premises"

"licence holder" -

"permitted hours" -

"sex establishment
licence" -

means the Local Government (Miscellaneous
Provisions) Act, 1982.

means Southampton City Council.

means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall licensed
under the Act.

means a person who is the holder of a sex
establishment licence.

means the hours during which the licensed premises
are permitted under Regulations 2 and 3 hereof to be
open to the public.

means a licence granted pursuant to Schedule 3 of the
Act.

Conditions applicable to licences for Sex Establishments

2.

The licensed premises shall be closed throughout Good Friday, Christmas Day
and every Sunday and public holiday and may be open only during the permitted
hours prescribed in Regulation 3 hereof.

The permitted hours of opening, unless varied by special condition, shall be as

follows: -
Mondays
Tuesdays
Wednesdays
Thursdays
Fridays
Saturdays

9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.
9:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m.

The licensed premises shall not be used for any purpose other then the business

of a sex establishment.



10.

11.

12.

The licensed premises shall not be open for the purposes for which the sex
establishment licence is granted on any occasion when the Council may signify in
writing to the licence holder, occupier or other person having at the time the care
and management of the premises, that the same should not be open.

No person who is or appears to be under the age of 18 or is known by the licence
holder or any servant or agent of his present on the licensed premises to be under
that age shall be admitted to or shall be permitted to remain on the licensed
premises.

The licence holder:-

(a) shall display on the licensed premises in a conspicuous position his sex
establishment licence;

(b) shall exhibit on those premises such notices in such form and in such
position as may be prescribed;

(c) shall comply with any prescribed restriction with respect to the exhibiting of
other written matter or of signs of any description on the licensed premises.

No facilities shall be provided in a sex shop for:-

(a) see any television broadcast or the replaying of any video tape or film or
other like matter nor;

(b) hearing any sound broadcast tape or other like matter other than facilities
for the reception of radio programmes broadcast by the British
Broadcasting Corporation or the Independent Broadcasting Authority.

No music, dancing or other entertainment whether of a like kind or not shall be
provided or permitted, other than as permitted by Regulation 8 of these
Regulations, and no refreshment of any kind shall be served on nor shall any
facilities for the taking of such refreshment be provided upon the licensed
premises.

The licence holder shall exhibit on the exterior of the licensed premises in a
position visible to persons outside the premises a notice, in addition to his name,
in not more than one place, in characters not exceeding three inches in height
and consisting only of the words “licensed sex shop” or “licensed sex cinema”
(as the case may be) and such indication, if any, as he thinks fit to give of the
times at which the licensed premises are open. No other notices, unless
pursuant to these Regulations, may be exhibited.

The licence holder shall exhibit in a conspicuous manner and in some
conspicuous place inside the licensed premises and at the point of access to the
licensed premises a notice stating that persons under the age of eighteen years
are not admitted thereto.

The licence holder shall not display in any position visible to persons outside the
premises any matter which does not comply with the Indecent Displays (Control)
Act 1981.



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

The licence holder shall not permit any person other than persons employed by
him, his servant or agent, statutory undertakers or, if applicable, his landlord to
enter upon any part of the premises which are not available to the public in
connection with the display, sale, hire, exchange, loan or demonstration of sex
articles.

The licence holder shall not display any advertisement which is visible to
persons outside the premises except as permitted by these Regulations or under
the Act and no advertisements shall be displayed wherever visible which depict
any article or thing intended for use in connection with or for the purpose of
stimulating or encouraging acts of force or restraint which are or may be
associated with sexual activity.

The licence holder shall ensure that the interior of the sex establishment shall
not be visible to persons outside the premises.

The exterior of the licensed premises shall be of materials approved by the
Council.

No illuminated signs or exterior lights shall be affixed to the licensed premises
unless approved by the Council.

The holder of a sex cinema licence shall observe such regulations and
conditions as may be approved by the Council from time for cinemas having a
licence under the Cinemas Act 1985 as shall be applied by the Council by
special condition to the sex establishment licence, giving such reference to the
said cinema licence conditions as may be deemed appropriate and the
regulations and conditions shall have the same force and effect as if the same
where severally contained in these regulations.

The licence holder shall not knowingly allow the licensed premises to be the
habitual resort of a reputed prostitute or the habitual resort or meeting place of
reputed prostitutes, whether the object of their so resorting or meeting is or is not
prostitution.

If the Council notifies the licence holder, occupier or other person having at the
time the care and management of the premises in writing by delivering notice at
the licensed premises that any particular sex article, advertisement or matter
shall not be displayed the same shall be withdrawn from view forthwith.

No film or video material shall be kept at the sex establishment except such film
or video material that bears a reproduction of the Certificate of the British Board
of Film Certification.

The licence holder shall comply with all fire and safety requirements of the
Council and maintain and keep available for use all specified fire fighting
equipment and extinguishers.

The external doors of the licensed premises shall be fitted with self closing
mechanisms and such mechanisms shall be maintained in good order. No
external door shall be fixed in the open position at any time during the permitted
hours.



24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence or
waiver thereof shall make their application on the form approved from time to
time by the Council returnable to the office of the Head of Legal & Democratic
Services together with the approved fee (where a sex establishment licence is
required). A copy of the application in all cases shall be sent to the Chief
Constable of Hampshire Constabulary, West Hill, Winchester, not later than 7
days after the date of the application to the Council.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall
advertise notice of their application in the form approved by the Council and in
accordance with the prescribed dimensions by publishing the advertisement in a
local newspaper circulating in Southampton not later than 7 days after the date
of the application. A copy of the advertisement as published and date of
publication shall be lodged with the Council forthwith.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall
display a notice in the form approved by the Council and furnish two completed
copies to the Council forthwith so that a copy may be sent to the appropriate
public library. The Notice shall be displayed at the premises to be licensed for
21 days beginning with the date of the application to the Council and in a place
where the notice can be inspected and conveniently read by the public from
outside the premises.

A police officer or an authorised officer of the Council may at any reasonable
time enter and inspect any premises in respect of which a sex establishment
licence is for the time being in force.

The licence holder or some responsible person, being 21 years of age or over,
nominated by him in writing shall be in attendance at the premises at all such
times as the premises are open to the public and any nomination shall be
produced to any police officer or authorised officer of the Council and give the
name and address of the person nominated.



SOUTHAMPTON

CITY COUNCIL

Appendix 5

2010/00571/19SEXE

LOCAL GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982,
SECTION 2

SOUTHAMPTON CITY COUNCIL by virtue of the powers contained in section 2 and schedule 3 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982

HEREBY GRANTS to

MATTHEW BARRY CAPLEN SMITH

of 4 Tetney Close, Maybush, Southampton SO16 9NJ

a licence to use the premises known as

Hidden Assets

and situate at

439 Millbrook Road West

in the City of Southampton as a

SEX SHOP

until the 19th day of March 2011

SUBJECT: (a) to the regulations for Sex Establishments made by the said Council and in force at
the date hereof

and (b) to conditions nos. 1 to 32, which said standard conditions, as varied, are
incorporated in the list of conditions and restrictions, annexed hereto.

The licence fee of £3500.00 has been received for and on behalf of the Council.
Dated this 20" March 2010

Mr. M.B.C. Smith

Hidden Assets

439 Millbrook Road West Solicitor to the Council
Southampton for and on behalf of
SO15 OHX Southampton City Council

APP 5 (Licence)
Page 1 of 6



This payz is dsabaralzly izit Liani

APP 5 (Licence)
Page 2 of 6

29[ nleMareln 2010



SOUTHAMPTON
CITY COUNCIL

Regulations for Sex Establishments

Southampton City Council, in exercise of the powers conferred upon them by paragraph 13 of
Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act, 1982 and of all other powers
enabling them in that behalf make the following Regulations:

1 (a) Inthese Regulations the following expressions that is to say "Sex Establishment", "Sex
Shop", "Sex Cinema", "Sex Article", and "Vessel" shall have the meanings respectively
assigned to them by Schedule 3 of the Act.

(b) Inthese Regulations the following expressions shall have the meanings hereby
respectively assigned to them namely: -

"the Act" - means the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act,
1982.

"the Council" - means Southampton City Council.

“the licensed means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall licensed under the

premises" - Act.

"licence holder" - means a person who is the holder of a sex establishment licence.

"permitted hours" - means the hours during which the licensed premises are permitted

under Regulations 2 and 3 hereof to be open to the public.

"sex establishment means a licence granted pursuant to Schedule 3 of the Act.
licence" -

Conditions applicable to licences for Sex Establishments

2. The licensed premises shall be closed throughout Good Friday, Easter Monday, Christmas
Day, Boxing and every Sunday and may be open only during the permitted hours prescribed in
Regulation 3 hereof.

3. The permitted hours of opening, unless varied by special condition, shall be as follows:-

Mondays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Tuesdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Wednesdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Thursdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Fridays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.
Saturdays 9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.

4.  The licensed premises shall not be used for any purpose other then the business of a sex
establishment.

5. The licensed premises shall not be open for the purposes for which the sex establishment
licence is granted on any occasion when the Council may signify in writing to the licence
holder, occupier or other person having at the time the care and management of the premises,
that the same should not be open.

6. No person who is or appears to be under the age of 18 or is known by the licence holder or any
servant or agent of his present on the licensed premises to be under that age shall be admitted
to or shall be permitted to remain on the licensed premises.

7. The licence holder: -

APP 5 (Licence)
Page 3 of 6



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

(a) shall display on the licensed premises in a conspicuous position his sex establishment
licence;

(b) shall exhibit on those premises such notices in such form and in such position as may be
prescribed;

(c) shall comply with any prescribed restriction with respect to the exhibiting of other written
matter or of signs of any description on the licensed premises.

No facilities shall be provided in a sex shop for: -

(a) seeing any television broadcast or the replaying of any video tape or film or other like
matter, except for a looped video recording, the content of which and location of the
equipment shall be approved by the Licensing Manager, nor;

(b) hearing any sound broadcast tape or other like matter other than facilities for the
reception of radio programmes broadcast by the British Broadcasting Corporation or the
Independent Broadcasting Authority.

(c) Atelevision, DVD player and video tape player may be installed in the licensed premises
in a position approved by the Licensing Manager out of sight of customers for the sole
purpose of quality control of recordings made available in the licensed premises.

No music, dancing or other entertainment whether of a like kind or not shall be provided or
permitted, other than as permitted by Regulation 8 of these Regulations, and no refreshment of
any kind shall be served on nor shall any facilities for the taking of such refreshment be
provided upon the licensed premises.

The licence holder shall exhibit on the exterior of the licensed premises in a position visible to
persons outside the premises a notice, in addition to his name, in not more than one place; in
characters not exceeding three inches in height and consisting only of the words “licensed sex
shop” or “licensed sex cinema” (as the case may be) and such indication, if any, as he thinksit
to give of the times at which the licensed premises are open. No other notices, unless
pursuant to these Regulations, may be exhibited.

The licence holder shall exhibit in a conspicuous manner and in some conspicuous place
inside the licensed premises and at the point of access to the licensed premises a notice
stating that persons under the age of eighteen years are not admitted thereto.

The licence holder shall not display in any position visible to persons outside the premises any
matter which does not comply with the Indecent Displays (Control) Act 1981.

The licence holder shall not permit any person other than persons employed by him, his
servant or agent, statutory undertakers or, if applicable, his landlord to enter upon any part of
the premises which are not available to the public in connection with the display, sale, hire,
exchange, loan or demonstration of sex articles.

The licence holder shall not display any advertisement which is visible to persons outside the
premises except as permitted by these Regulations or under the Act and no advertisements
shall be displayed wherever visible which depict any article or thing intended for use in
connection with or for the purpose of stimulating or encouraging acts of force or restraint which
are or may be associated with sexual activity.

The licence holder shall ensure that the interior of the sex establishment shall not be visible to
persons outside the premises.

(@) The exterior of the licensed premises shall be of materials approved by the Council

(b) The exterior of the premises shall consist of material and colours of a discreet nature
appropriate to the character of the locality and shall be in keeping with the appearance of
other premises in the vicinity. There shall be no external advertisements nor shall the
frontage contain displays of advertisements of any nature or permit the interior of the
licensed premises to be viewed from outside.

APP 5 (Licence)

Page 4 of 6



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

(c) Detailed proposals for the external appearance of the licensed premises shall be agreed
with the Council’s Licensing Manager within 14 days of the notification of the
determination of the application for a licence and shall be subject to ratification by the
Council’s Licensing (General) Sub Committee prior to the commencement of business at
the licensed premises.

No illuminated signs or exterior lights shall be affixed to the licensed premises unless approved
by the Licensing Manager and subject to planning permission.

The holder of a sex cinema licence shall observe such regulations and conditions as may be
approved by the Council from time for cinemas having a licence under the Cinemas Act 1985
as shall be applied by the Council by special condition to the sex establishment licence, giving
such reference to the said Cinema licence conditions as may be deemed appropriate and-the
regulations and conditions shall have the same force and effect as if the same where severally
contained in these regulations.

The licence holder shall not knowingly allow the licensed premises to be the habitual resort of a
reputed prostitute or the habitual resort or meeting place of reputed prostitutes, whether the
object of their so resorting or meeting is or is not prostitution.

If the Council notifies the licence holder, occupier or other person having at the time the care
and management of the premises in writing by delivering notice at the licensed premises that
any particular sex article, advertisement or matter shall not be displayed the same shall be
withdrawn from view forthwith.

No film or video material shall be kept at the sex establishment except such film or video
material that bears a reproduction of the Certificate of the British Board of Film Certification.

The licence holder shall comply with all fire and safety requirements of the Council and
maintain and keep available for use all specified fire fighting equipment and extinguishers.

The external doors of the licensed premises shall be fitted with self-closing mechanismsand
such mechanisms shall be maintained in good order. No external door shall be fixed in the
open position at any time during the permitted hours. A “lobby” area will be installed, the style
and design to be approved by the Licensing Manager.

Applicants for the grant, 'renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence or waiver thereof
shall make their application on the form approved from time to time by the Council returnable to
the office of the Solicitor to the Council together with the approved fee (where a sex
establishment licence is required). A copy of the application in all cases shall be sent to the
Chief Constable of Hampshire Constabulary, West Hill, Winchester not later than 7 days after
the date of the application to the Council.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall advertise
notice of their application in the form approved by the Council and in accordance with the
prescribed dimensions by publishing the advertisement in a local newspaper circulating in
Southampton not later than 7 days after the date of the application. A copy of the
advertisement as published and date of publication shall be lodged with the Council forthwith.

Applicants for the grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence shall display a
notice in the form approved by the Council and furnish two completed copies to the Council
forthwith so that a copy may be sent to the appropriate public library. The Notice shall be
displayed at the premises to be licensed for 21 days beginning with the date of the application
to the Council and in a place where the notice can be inspected and conveniently read by the
public from outside the premises.

A police officer or an authorised officer of the Council may at any reasonable time enter and
inspect any premises in respect of which a sex establishment licence is for the time being in
force.

The licence holder or some responsible person, being 21 years of age or over, nominated by
him in writing shall be in attendance at the premises at all such times as the premises are open
to the public and any nomination shall be produced to any police officer or authorised officer of
the Council and give the name and address of the person nominated.

APP 5 (Licence)

Page 5 of 6



29.

30.

31.

32.

A closed circuit television system shall be installed in the licensed premises to the satisfaction
of the Council’s Licensing Manager. The system shall efficiently record the operation of the
licensed premises and shall automatically indicate the date and time of the events recorded to
a standard that would be acceptable as evidence in the Courts. All closed circuit television
recordings shall be retained for a minimum of 28 days and shall be made available at the
licensed premises for inspection by a police officer or an authorised officer of the Council.

The licensee shall notify the Council and Hampshire Constabulary of the name, address and
date of birth of any manager or employee involved in the operation of the business at the
licensed premises within seven days of them commencing employment. The City Council shall
reserve the right to object to any person being involved in the operation of the business at the
licensed premises where it considers them unsuitable, in particular by reason of relevant
unspent criminal convictions.

The licensee shall produce and maintain a list of all stock carried at the licensed premises and
shall make it available to a police officer or authorised officer of the Council on demand.

The rear door of the premises will be closed to customers save as required as an emergency
exit in pursuance to Fire and Health and Safety Regulations.

LL19/0013 — March 2010

APP 5 (Licence)

Page 6 of 6



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Minutes Of The Previous Meeting (Including Matters Arising)
	7 Application for Renewal of a Sex Shop Licence - Taste of Amsterdam, 437 Millbrook Road West
	8 Application for Renewal of a Sex Shop Licence with 2 Variations - Hidden Assets, 439 Millbrook Road West

